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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Metter, Georgia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the

discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the remaining fund information of the City of Metter, Georgia,

as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise

the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Manøgement's Respo nsíbílity for the Financial Støtements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and

maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

A uditor's Responsíbilíty

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accgrdance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to

financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the finarrcial

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opínions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial

position of the governmental activities, the business-type actir¡ities, the discretely presented component unit, each major

iund, and the rernaining fund information of the City of Metter, Georgia, as of June 30,2017, and the respective changes

a
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in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General
Fund and Regional Drug Task Force special revenue fund, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Require d Supp I e me ntary Info rmat i o n

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and
analysis on pages 4-11 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an

essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance

with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management

about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's

responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City of Metter, Georgia's basic financial statements. The individual fund financial statements and the schedule of projects
paid with special purpose local option sales tax proceeds are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The individual fund financial statements and the schedule of projects paid with special purpose local option sales tax
proceeds are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the individual fund financial
statements and the schedule of projects paid with special purpose local option sales tax proceeds are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditíng Standarcls

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 12,2018, on our
consideration of the City of Metter, Georgia's intemal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an

integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Støndards in considering City of Metter,
Georgia's intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Vr;"ur@.*/ah
Statesboro, Georgia
January 72,2018
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

City of Metter, Georgia

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Within this section of the City of Metter, Georgia's (the City's) annual fînancialrepofi, the City's management is pleased to provide

this narrative discussion and analysis of the frnancial activities of the City for the year ended June 30, 2017.The City's financial
performance is discussed and analyzed within the context of the accompanying financial statements and disclosures following this

section.

Financial Highlights

The City had total net position (assets exceeded liabilities) of 826,732,611 at June 30,2017 .

Total net position is comprised of the following:

(l) Net investment in capital assets of $22,334,303 includes property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced

by outstanding debt related to the purchase or construction of capital assets.

(2) Net position of 52,292,288 is restricted by constraints imposed from outside the City such as debt covenants, grantors, laws,

or regulations.

(3) Unrestricted net position of 92¡06p20 represents the portion available to maintain the City's continuing obligations to

citizens and creditors.

a

a

o The City's governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $3,356,099, compared to $3,158,044 for the year ended June

30,2016. This is a $198,055 (or 6.3%) increase.

¡ At June 30, 2017, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 5944,052, or 27 .4%o of total General Fund expenditures.

The above financial highlights are explained in more detail in the "financial analysis" section of this document.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This Management Discussion and Analysis document introduces the City's basic financial statements. The basic financial statements

include: (f government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the basic financial statements. The

City also includes in this report additional information to supplement the basic frnancial statements'

Government-wlde Fìnøncìal Statements

The City's annual report includes two government-wide financial statements. These statements provide both long-term and short-term

information about the City's overall financial status. Financial reporting at this level uses a perspective similar to that found in the

private sector with its basis in accrual accounting and elimination or reclassification of activities between frinds.

The f1rst of these government-wide statements is the Statement of Net Position. This is the government-wide statement of position

presenting information that includes all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference between them reportedas net position,

bver time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City as a

whole is improving or deteriorating. Evaluation of the overall health of the City would extend to other non-financial factors such as

diversificatiòn of the taxpayer basè or the condition of City infrastructure, in addition to the financial information provided in this

report.

The second government-wide statement islhe Statement of Activitles, which reports how the City's net position changed during the

current fiscal year. All cunent year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is received or paid' An important

purpose of thé design of the statement of activities is to show the financial reliance of the City's distinct activities or functions on

revenues provided by the City's taxpayers.

Both govemment-wide fÏnancial statements distinguish governmental activities of the City that are principally supported by sales and

p.op.ity taxes from business-type activities that are intended to recover all or a signiflrcant portion oftheir costs through user fees and

5



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

City of Mettero Georgia

charges, Governmental activities include general government, public safety, public works, health and welfare, culture and recreation,
and housing and development. Business-type activities include the water and sewer system.

The government-wide financial statements are presented on pages 13 and l4 of this report.

Fund Fínanciøl Statemenls

A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specifrc activities or objectives. The City uses

funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with fînance-related laws and regulations, Within the basic financial statements, fund

financial statements focus on the City's most significant funds rather than the City as a whole. Major funds are separately reported

while all other (non-major) funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. More detailed information for individual funds

is provided in a later section ofthis report.

The City has two kinds of funds:

I. Governmental funds are reported in the fund financial statements and encompass the same functions reported as governmental

activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, the focus is very different with fund statements providing a

distinctive view of the City's governmental funds. These statements report short-term fiscal accountability focusing on the use of
spendable resources and balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. They are useful in evaluating annual

financing requirements of governmental programs and the commitment of spendable resources for the near-term.

Since the government-wide focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between these two perspectives may provide insight into

the long-term impact of short-term fînancing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund

operating statement provide a reconciliation to assist in understanding the differences between these two perspectives.

The basic governmental fund financial statements are presented on pages 15-21 ofthis report.

2, Proprietaryfunds are reported in the fund financial statements and generally report services for which the City charges customers a

fee. The City's only proprietary fund is classified as an enterprise fund. This enterprise fund essentially encompasses the same

functions reported as business-type activities in the government-wide statements. Services are provided to customers external to the

City for water and sewer utilities.

The basic enterprise fund financial statements are presented on pages 22-24 of this report.

Notes to the Buslc Fínanclal Støtements

The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of the government-wide and

fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin on page25 of this report.
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MANAGEMENTTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

City of Metter, Georgia

Financial Analysis of the City as a \ilhole

The City's net position at June 30,2017 was526,732,611, compared to the year ended June 30,2016 figure of $26,790,803. The

following table provides a summary of the City's net position:

Summary of Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

Assets:

Current assets

Capital assets

June 30,
2017

June 30,

2016
June 30,

2017

s 1,164,799

June 30,
2016

June 30,
2017

s 4,971,897
23 78

June 30,
2016

$ 3,807,098
17,543,111

$ 3,666,735
17,727,433 6,033 .167

$1,1 3 8,405

6,212,466
$ 4,805,r40
23,939,899

Total assets

Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

2t,350,209 21,394,168 1 197.966

205,741

7,350,871 28,548,175 28.74s,039

419,400
I 19,158

483,369
78,939 1.265

218,599
1,173,329

62s,l4l
r,190,423

70r,968
1"252,268

Total liabilities

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

538,558 562,308 |,277,006 1,391,928 1,815,564 r,954,236

17,463,345
2,292,288
1,056,018

17,661,579
2,065,619
1,104,662

4,870,958

002

4,939,885

l,019,0s8

22,334,303
2,292,288
2,106,020

22,601,464
2,065,619
2.1 23,720

Total net position $20,81 1,651 $20,83 1,860 $ 5,920,960 $5,958,943 _$26 J n,6n- _$26,790,!9!_

The City continues to maintain a high current ratio. The current ratio compares current assets to current liabilities, and is an indication

of the ability to pay cuffent obligations. For June 30,2017, the current ratio for governmental activities is 9.1 and 5.7 for business

type activities. For the year ended June 30, 2016, the current ratio for governmental activities was 7 .6, and for business type activities

5,2. For the City, overall, the current ratio for June 30, 2017 is 8.0, compared to 6.8 for the year ended June 30, 2016.

The City reported positive balances in net position for both governmental and business-type activities. Net position decreased by
$20,209 for governmental activities and decreased by $37,983 for business-type activities. The City's overall financial position

decreased $58,192 during the year ended June 30,2017.

Note that 83.9% of the governmental activities'net position was invested in capital assets. The City uses these capital assets to
provide services to its citizens. On the business type activities, the City has spent 82.3% of its net position on capital assets. Capital

assets in the business type activities provide utility services, which generate revenues for this fund. Expansion of these systems is

necessary for the continued growth ofthe City and for its financial position, as this utility system generates considerable revenue for
all the City's operations. 835% of the City's total net position was included in capital assets.

-7-



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
For the Yeør Ended June 30,2017

City of Metter, Georgia

The following table provides a summary of the City's changes in net position:

Summary of Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business'type Activities

2017 2016 2017 2016

Revenues:

Program:

Charges for services

Operating grants

Capital grants and contributions

General:

Taxes

Other

$ 1,048,303 $ 1,059,979

Total

$ 661,409

715,375

874,232

2,128,2s5

19,949

$ 624,958

ó85,528

617,863

2,076,905

88,288

2017

s 1,709,712

715,375

874,232

2,128,255

20,539

2016

2,076,905

l 00,0s7

$ r,684,937

685,528

617,863

11,769590

Total revenues

Program Expenses:

General government

Municipal court

Public safety

Public works

Health and welfare

Culture and recreation

Housing and development

Interest

Water and sewer

Total expenses

Excess (deficiency)

Transfers

Special item

Change in net position

Beginning net position

Ending net position

4,399,220 4,093,542 1,048,893 1,071,748 5,448,1t3 5,t65,290

929,590

8,967

2,076,225

962,213

60,721

l 50,703

226,1t5

2,207

886,734

10,295

1,837,389

938,7t6

53,742

147,017

225,405

3,608

l,l ó 1,138

886,734

10,295

1,837,389

938,716

53,742

147,0t7

225,405

3,608

929,590

8,967

2,076,225

962,213

60,721

150,703

226,115

2,207

1,089,5641,089,564

1,089,5644,416,741 4,102,906

l,ló1,138

1,161,138

(89,390)

229,112

5,506,305 5,264,044

(s8,192) (98,7s4)

659,070

(58,192) 560,316

(t7,szt) (e,364)

(2,688) (229,112)

659,070

(40,671)

2,688

(20,20e)

20,83 1,860

420,594

20,4t1,266 26,790,803 26,230,487

$20,81 l,65 l $20,831,860 $s,920,960 $s,9s8,943 $26,732,6rr $26!?901q03:::::

(37,983) 139,722

5,958,943 5,819,221

GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES

The City is heavily reliant on taxes to support governmental activities operations. In total, taxes make vp 48.3o/o of revenues, as

comparéd b 50.7o/o for the year ended June 30,2016. Sales taxes provided $655,839 ot l49yo of the City's total governmental

actiiities revenues, as compared to 15.1o/o for the year ended June 30, 2016. Property taxes are the largest revenue source totaling

$698,831 of revenues or 15.gyo of total revenues as compared to 17 ,8% for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Capital grants include $535,377 in special purpose local option sales taxes (SPLOST) received from Candler County for capital

pró¡ectsãnd $42,399 in transportation special purpose local option sales taxes discretionary funding (T-SPLOST). SPLOST and T-

bpiOSf revenue provided t j.t% of the City's total governmental revenues as compared to 13.9o/o for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Also, note that program revenues covered 51.0% for the year ended June 30, 2017, and 47 .0% for the year ended June 30, 2016 of
governmentat operãting expenses. This means that the government's taxpayers and the City's other general governmental revenues

lunded the remâiningaO,6r/" for the year ended June 30, 2017, and 53.0% for the year ended June 30, 2016 of the governmental

activities. As this documents, the general economy and the local businesses have a major impact on the City's revenue streams'
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

City of Metter, Georgia

GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The public safety function comprises 47.0% of the City's total governmental activity expenses as compared to 44.8o/o for the year

ended June 30, 2016. The public works function comprises 2l .8% of the total governmental activity expenses as compared to 22.9o/o

for the year ended June 30, 2016. Of the total $4,416,741 of governmental activity expenses, depreciation is $747,031 or l6.9Yo of
that total.

The following table presents the cost of each of the City's programs, including the net costs (i.e., total cost less revenues generated by

the activities). The net costs illustrate the financial burden that was placed on the City's taxpayers by each ofthese functions.

Governmental Activities

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016

Total Cost

of Services

Net Cost

of Services

Total Cost

of Services

Net Cost

of Services

General government

Municipal court

Public safety

Public works

Health and welfare

Culture and recreation

Housing and development

Interest

s 929,590

9,967

2,076,225

962,213

60,721

150,703

226,115

2,207

$ 827,105

8,967

1,305,405

(296,922)

13,750

129,853

175,360

2,207

$ 787,860

10,295

617,547

375,083

7,742

147,017

225,405

3,608

$ 886,734

70,295

1,937,389

938,716

53,742

147,017

225,405

3,608

Total $4,416,741 $2, 165,72s s4,102,906 92,174,557

For the year ended June 30, 2017, all functions required a subsidy from general revenues except for public works.

BUSINESS.TYPE ACTIVITIES
Revenues vs. Expenses

The City's sole enterprise fund is the water and sewer system fund. Overall, the change in net position was a decrease of $37,983 as

compared to an increase of $139,722 for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds

Governmenlal Funds

Governmental funds are reported in the fund statements with a short-term, inflow and outflow of spendable resources focus. This

information is useful in assessing resources available at the end of the year in comparison with upcoming financing requirements'

Governmental funds reported ending fund balances of $3,356,099, as compared to $3,158,044 at June 30,2016. Of this year-end total,

5944,052 was unassigned indicating availability for continuing City service requirements. $1,578,281 in fund balance is restricted for
capital projects, 8529,526 is restricted for the regional drug task force, and S100,000 is restricted for the animal shelter'

The total ending fund balances of governmental funds show an increase for the year ended June 30, 2017 of $198'055 or 6.30/o

compared to a decrease for the year ended June 30, 2016 of$60,887, or 1'9Vo'

-9-



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
For the Yeør Ended June 30, 2017

City of Metter, Georgia

Møjor Governmental Funds

General Fund - The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund and the largest source of dayto-day service delivery. The

General Fund's fund balance decreased by $26,625 or2.2Yo as compared to a56,704 or 0.60/o increase for the year ended June 30,

2016.

The General Fund's ending unassigned fund balance of $944,052 is considered adequate, representing the equivalent of 2'7.4o/o of
annual expenditures as compared to 29.1Yo at June 30,2016.

Regional Drug Tøsk Force Fund - During the year ended June 30, 2016, the City assumed the operations of the Southeastern

Regional Drug Task Force. The Task Force combines Georgia Bureau of Investigation resources with local law enforcement

assistance to provide drug enforcement services and investigations within the communities of the Southeastern Regional district' The

City serves as headquarters for the Southeastern Regional office. The Task Force opened bank accounts under the City's name and

received grant funding for which the City is listed as subgrantee on the award. The amount expended for the year ended June 30,2017
on public safety totaled 5478,892. Revenue recognized in this fund totaled 9411,024 for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Hotet/Molel Fand - The City recognized $72,919 in hotel/motel taxes, which was expended during the year ended June 30,2017.
This amount compares to a $69,905 amount for the year ended June 30, 2016. These resources are paid to the City's Welcome Center.

There is no fund balance at June 30,2017 ,

2005 SPLOST Fand - The amount expended for the year ended June 30, 2017 on projects approved in this SPLOST referendum

included the following 

water and Sewer system improvements and expansion (s39,900)

2011 SPLOST Fund - The amount expended for the year ended June 30, 2077 on projects approved in this SPLOST referendum

included the following:

o Street and drainage improvements (8251,272)
r Water and Sewer system improvements ($2,788)

The City recognized $535,377 for its share of the Candler County SPLOST. This amount compares to $504,697 recognized in the

year ended June 30, 2016.

T-SPLOST Fund - The amount expended for the year ended June 30, 2077 on road projects totaled $2,000. The City recognized

$42,440 in revenue in this fund for the year ended Jlurl'e 30,2017 .

The Proprletary Fund

The proprietary fund statements share the same focus as the government-wide statements, repolting both short-term and long-term

information about financial status. Therefore, the analysis is presented above.

Budgetary Highlights - General Fund
Overall, the City recognized revenues equal to 1009% of budgeted revenues in the frnal appropriated budget. Overall, the City
recognized expenditures equal to $253,061 less than, or 6.80/o under budgeted expenditures in the fÌnal appropriated budget.

On the revenue side of the budget, intergovernmental revenue came in $90,065 higher than the amount budgeted. In total, General

Fund revenues came in $30,614 more than the budgeted amount.

On the expenditure side, the roadways and walkways budget was under spent by $63,714 and fire was 5263,724 under spent.

Fund Balance decreased by 526,625 more than the amount budgeted.

-10-



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
For lhe Yeør Ended June 30, 2017

City of Metter, Georgia

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capítøl Assels

The City's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,

2017 was $17,543,111 and $6,033,162, respectively, for a total of 523,576,278. This net investment decreased by 1.0% for
governmental activities and decreasedby 2.9% for business-type activities. The overall decrease was 1.5olo for the City as a whole.

See Note 7 for additional information about changes in capital assets. The following table provides a summary of capital asset activity.

Capital Assets
(Amounts in Thousands)

Governmental Activities
2017 2016

Business Activities
2017 2016

Total Activities
ffi

Non-depreciable assets:

Land
Construction in progress

Depreciable assets:

Buildings
Land improvements
Water and sewer system

Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total depreciable assets

$ 604,003
1 6,1 95

604,003
45,881

492,280
44,947

s s 492,280
36,673

$ 1,09ó,283
52,868

$ 1,096,283
90,828

$

Total non-depreciable assets 620,198 649,884 528,953 537.227 I,l49,l5l I,l 87-l I I

13,822,200
688,7 I 0

13,822,200
668,710

94,767

10,246,421
963,760

94,767

1 0,1 64,1 56

963,760

13,916,967
688,710

10,246,42r
3,733,7 r7

I 1,609,1 l3

13,916,967
668,710

l 0, l ó4,1 56

3,612,16r
11"158,274

2,769,957
I 1,609,1 13

2,648,401
11,158,274

29,889,980

11,967,067

28,297,585

11,220,036

I 1,304,948

5,800,734

11,222,683

5,547,444

40,194,928

17,167 ,80r

39,520,268

16,767,480Less accumulated depreciation

Book value - depreciable assets 16,922,913 17,077,549 t4 5,675,239 22,427,127 2.788

Percentage depreciated 4lo/o 40% 5lo/o 49o/o 44% 42o/o

$ 23,939,899Total book value $ 17,543,111 s 17,727,433 _$_6,033,1 67_ s 6,212,466 $

At June 30,2017 , the depreciable capital assets for governmental activities were 4lo/o depreciated, compared to 40o/o at June 30, 2016.

With the City's business type activities, 5l% of the asset values were depreciated at June 30, 2017 and 49o/o at June 30, 2016,
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30,2017

City of Metter, Georgia

Long-term Debt

AtJune30,20lT,theCityhadcapitalleasesandGEFAnotesoutstanding. DuringtheyearendedJune30,20TT,theCityincreased
outstanding capital lease obligations by 523,763 or 42.4Y0. The City's notes payable for business-type activities decreased by 8.7%o.

Total compensated absences payable increased 39.9% from the June 30, 2016 balance.

Outstanding Debt

Governmental
Activities

Business-type

Activities Tot¡ls

2017 20r6 2017 2016 2017 20t6

Capital leases

Notes payable

USDA loans

Compensated absences

Total

$ 79,766 $ 56,003 $ 79,766 $ 56,003

1,272,581

9,851

72,896

s 1,162,209 S 1,272,581 1,162,209

9,8s I

84,674 59,029 17,274 13.867 l0l 948

$ t64,440 $ 124,883 $ l, 179.483 $ r,286,448 s 1,343,923 $ 1,4 l 1"331

See Note 9 and l0 for additional information about the City's long-term debt.

Economic Conditions Affecting the City

The City is physically located in the eastern portion of the state of Georgia, approximately 175 miles southeast of the State capital,

Atlanta, Georgia, and approxim ately 63 miles northwest of Savannah, the first planned city in the state. Metter is the county seat in
Candler County, and its population makes up approximately 40%o of the County's population. The County's land area is 247 square

miles with 15.7 persons per square mile. The city of Metter is 7.39 square miles.

As of November 2017 Candler County's unemployment rate averaged 3.6% (Georgia Department of Labor), compared to the state's

average of 4.3% (GDOL).

The City's population is 4,100 (U.S. Bureau of Census). Since the City relies primarily on property and sales taxes for its operating

revenue, changes in the economy definitely affect these revenue streams. Since sales taxes are an'oelastic revenue stream" in a

sluggish economy, the sales tax revenues are reduced immediately. Properly taxes are considered "inelastic" in the short-term; this

revenue stream is more stable. Fortunately, for the City, because of its revenue stream makeup, it is able to survive financially in a
slow economy.

Contacting the City's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances, comply with finance-related laws and

regulations, and demonstrate the City's commitment to public accountability. If you have questions about this report or would like to
request additional information, contact the City Manager at City Hall at 49 South Rountree, Post Offrce Box 74, Metter, Georgia'

30439, orcall (912) 685-2527.
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30" 2017

Primary Government
Govemmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities Total
Component

Unit
ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Receivables:

Taxes
Accounts
Intergovemmental
Other
Internal balances

Prepaid insurance
Total Current Assets

Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net

Total Capital Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Customer deposits
Compensated absences
Notes payable
Capital leases payable
Other

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
Compensated absences
Notes payable (net of current portion)
Capital leases payable (net ofcurrent portion)

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Capital projects
Program purposes

Unrestricted
Total Net Position

74,246 17,686 91,932
3,807,098 7,764,799 4,971,891

620,t98 528,953 1,149,151
16,922,913 5,504,274 22,427,127
17,543,111 6,033,767 23,576,278
2t,350,209 7,197,966 28,548,175

s 2,916,861
233,969

983,450
64,557

162,5_11

(63,405)

$ 3,900,311
298,526

121,558
201,023
343,723

14,824

$

121,558
38,512

343,723
14,824
63,405

195,598
26,080

16,935

28,347
152,440

611

96,912
3,455

104,763

196,209
26,080
96,912
20,390

104,763
28,347

152,440
419,400 205,741 625,141

67,739

51,4t9
119 158 1,07r,265 l,lgo,423

538,558 1,277,006 I,815,564

17,463,345 4,g7o,g5g 22,334,303

1,660,496
63t,792

1,056,018 1,050,002

T2o-F1^6-'5ï-T.sB-tõFõ'-

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

13,819
1,057,446

8 1,558
1,057,446

51,419

1,660,496
63t,792

2,106,020
$ 26,732,611
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2OI7

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

Program/Function Expenses

Fees, Fines, and

Charges for Services

Operating Grants Capital Grants

andContributions andContributions
Govemmental

Activities
Business-Type

Activities
Component

Total Unit
Primary Government
Govemmental Activities:

General govemment

Municipal court
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Housing and development
Interest

Total Govemmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
Water and sewer

Total Primary Government

g 929,590
8,967

2,076,225
962,213

60,721

I 50,703

226,15
2,207

633,337

46,971
20,850

$ (827,105)
(8,967)

(r,305,405)
296,922
( l 3,7s0)

( I 29,8s3)
( r 75,360)

(2,207')

$ 88,268 $ 14,217

s 874,232

$ (827,10s)
(8,967)

(l,305,40s)
296,922
( I 3,750)

( l 2e,853)
(175,360)

(2,207)

(2,t6s,125)

$ (41,261) (41,261)

137,483
384,903

50,755

4,416,741 661,409

I.048.303

'715,3't5 874,232 (2,165,725\

I,089,564

$ 5,506,305 1,709,712$715,3755874,232 (2,16s,72s) (41,261\ (2,206,986)

Component Unit
Downtown Development

Authority of Metter

General Revcnues
Property taxes levied for:

General purposes

Sales taxes

Insurance premium tax
Franchise taxes

Hotel/motel taxes

Other taxes

Gain on sale ofcapital assets

Interest eamed

Miscellaneous

Total General Revenues

Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position, July 1,2016

Net Position, June 30, 2017

698,83 I

655,839
257,146
302,925
72,9t9

t40,595
700

2,t14
t7,135

590

698,83 I
655,839
257,146
302,925
72,919

I 40,595
700

2,704
t7,135

2,148,204

(2,688)

2,145,5t6

(20,20e)

20,83 1,860

$ 20,81 1,65 I

590

2,688

2,148,794

3.278 2.148.794

(37,983)

5,958,943

(s8, l e2)

26.790,803

$ 5,920,960 s 26,732,611

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 20I7

General

Regional
Drug Task

Force
2005

SPLOST
20tl

SPLOST T.SPLOST

Non-major
tund -

Hotel/Motel
Tax

Total
Governmental

Funds
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates ofdeposit
Receivables:

Taxes
Accounts
Intergovemmental
Other
Interfund

Prepaid insurance

$ 624,9t5
233,969

$ 621,351 $ s24,174 $ l,0l 1,506 $ 128,306 $ 6,609

6,237

l0l,013 42,721 3,584

2,266

$ 2,916,861
233,969

121,55 8

38,5 l2
343,723

14,824
l 10,814
74,246

1ls,32t
38,s12

196,405
14,824

I 10,8 l4
7 I,980

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds

Other
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - property taxes

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balance

s 1,406,740 $ 724,630 $ 524,174 51,054,227 $ 131,890 $ 12,846 $ 3,854,507

$ 134,752
16,953

$ 47,880
9,t27

120 $ 12,846 $

$ 47,409
l 35,83 I

l 92,838 - t20 47,409 12,846

I 95,598
26,080
47,409

152,44016,609

I 68,3 r4 421,527

76,88 l 76,881

71,980
100,000
45,5 l3

2,266
529,526 $ 524,174 $1,054,107 84,481

74,246
2,292,288

45,513
944,0s2

3,356,09953t,792 ---1ÃÍlTrp-r-,10-----r-448i-----------:-

740 _!____J2!,6n_ _!_suJ74_ _ïJ,0!!227_ _I__!!q2!_ _q__!,q!_ $ 3,854,507

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

944,052
I,161,545

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OFRESOURCES AND FUND
BALANCE $l
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CITY OF METTE& GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FTINDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 3O,2OI7

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Capital assets used in goveûìmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Cost

Less accumulated depreciation
$ 29,510,178

(r1,967,067)

$ 3,356,099

I7,543,r11

76,881

(t64,440)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period

expenditures and, therefore, are reported as unavailable in the funds:

Property taxes

Long-term liabilities, including notes payable, capital leases and compensated

absences are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,

are not reported in the funds but are reported on the statement of net

position:

Capital leases

Compensated absences

Net Position Of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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(84,674)
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2OI7

General

Regional
Drug Task

Force
2005

SPLOST
20ll

SPLOST T-SPLOST

Non-rnajor
fund -

HoteVMotel
Tax

Tot¿l
Govemrnental

Funds
REVENUES

Taxes
Licenses and pennits
Charges for services
Intergovemmental
Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cuffent:

General govemment

Municipal court
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Housing and development

Capital outlay:
Public works
Culture and recreation
Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from capital leases

Sale ofcapital assets

Transfen in (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, JULY I,2OI6

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30,2017

$ 360,896
48,380

$ s35,377 S 42,399

4t
1,748

3,330,454 411,024 282 535,786 42,440

627,959
8,967

1,500,87 I
931,789

58,579
128,123
1 53,1 96

34, I 38

2,207
3,445,829

478,892

72,919

1 50,1 66
9l,106

2,000

478,892 - 241,272 2,000 72,919

$ 2,049,721
87,740

390,388
628,8 I 0

82,398
2,073

$ 72,919 s 2,122$40
87,740

390,388
1,567,482

t30,778
2,805$ 282 409

72,919
9t,072

4,392,905

627,959
8,967

1,979,763
93t,789
58,579

128,r23
226,115

152,166
91,106

34,138
2,207

4,240,912

(11s,375) (67,868) 282 294,st4 40,440

48,050
700

40,000
88,750

(26,62s) (67,8ó8) (39,618) 2et;726 40,440

44,041

$ 84,481

I,t88,170 599,660 563 762,381

$ 1,161,545 S s3t,792 g s24,t'14 $ r,054,107

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

l5l,993

48,050

(2,688)
48,850

l98,0ss

700

3,1 58,044

$ 3,356,099
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FORTHE YEARENDED JLINE 30 2017

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Net Change In Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the

statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures and do

not report donated capital assets. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capítalized capital outlays and donated capital assets differed from
depreciation expense in the current period.

Depreciation expense

Capital outlays

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current

financial resources are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds.

Properly taxes:

Unavailable revenue at 6130117

Unavailable revenue at 6130l16

Other financing sources for the inception ofcapital leases and proceeds from notes payable

are reported on the fund level operating statement but are reported as a liability on the

govemment-wide financial statements.

Repayment of capital lease and note payable principal is an expenditure in the

governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the

statement of net position.

Compensated absences reported in the statement of activities do not require

the use ofcurrent financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

expenditures in govemmental funds.

Liability at6130117

Liability at 6130116

Change In Net Position of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

- 18-

$ (747,031)
562,709

$ 198,055

(184,322)

5,615

(48,050)

34,138

(25,645)

76,881
(71,266)

(84,674)
59,029

$ (20,209)



CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FLì'ND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2017

Original and
Final

Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)
REVENUES

Taxes
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:

Governing body
Financial administration
General government buildings

Total general government

Municipal court

Public safety:
Police
Fire
Animal control

Total public safety

Public works:
Roadways and walkways
Sanitation
Maintenance and shop

Total public works

Health and welfare:
Family connection
Community center
Public education

Total health and welfare

Culture and recreation:
Recreation
Libraries

Total culture and recreation

Housing and development:
Building inspections
Economic development
Tourism
Downtown development
Airport

Total housing and development

$ 2,128,095
85,250

383,550
538,745
100,000

s00

$ $2,049,721
87,740

390,388
628,810

82,398
2,073

(78,374)
2,490
6,838

90,065
(17,602)

1,573
63 700

3,299,840
89,324 25,624

3,330,454 30,614

(22,008)
(27,790)

5,476
(44,322)

9839 9s0

857,005
805,482

61,654
1,724,14r

775,730
149,287
59,26r

61,086
467,294

55,257

83,094
495,084
49 781

627,959583,637

9,967

897,372
541,758

61, 741

712,0t6
158,554
61,2r9

(40,367)
263,724

63,714
(9,267)
(1,958)

(87)
223,270

984,278 931 789 52,489

45,240
3,715
6,600

45,070
6,909
6,600

170
(3,t94)

55,555 58,579 (3,024)

84,000
44 110

t28 110

2,884
1.1.0,826

13,578
20,775

918
104,674

9,432
19,519

13

r,966
6,152
4,146
1,256
(r25)

84,000
44,123

t28,123

18,528 18,653

$ 166,591 $ 153,196

See accompanying notes to the basic financial stat€ments.
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FI.JND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FI.IND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JI.JNE 3O,2OI7

Original and

Final
Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

Debt service:

Principal
Interest

Total debt service

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (I-INDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Sale of capital assets

Proceeds from capital leases

Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FLIND BALANCE

FI-IND BALANCE, JULY T,2OL6

FI.IND BALANCE, JI-INE 30,2OI7

s 42,772 $
a
J 8s6

46 628

$ 8,634

649
10,283

34,r38
2,207

36,345

3,698,890 3,445,829 253,06r

(399,050) (rts,375) 283 675

2,000
397,050

700
48,050

40,000

(1,300)
(349,000)

40 000
(310,300)399,050 88,750

$ (26,625) s (26,62s\

1,1 gg,1 70

$ 1,161,545

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FLIND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - REGIONAL DRUG TASK FORCE SPECIAL REVENUE FLIND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JLINE 3O,2OI7

Original and
Final

Budget

$ 453,370 $

453,370

453,370

$

360,896 $

48,380

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

(92,474)
48,380

I 748
(42,346)

(25,522)

$ (67,868)

Actual
REVENUES

Intergovernmental

Fines and forfeitures
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Public Safety

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, JULY T,2016

FI-IND BALANCE, JLTNE 30,2OT7

1 748
411,024

478 892

(67,868)

599,660

_$ s3rJ92

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FUND
JUNE 3O,2OT7

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Accounts receivable

Prepaid insurance

Total Current Assets

Capital Assets

Land

Construction in progress

Water and sewer system

Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total Capital Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable

Customer deposits

Compensated absences

Notes payable

Interfund payable

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Compensated absences (net of current portion)
Notes payable (net of current portion)

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$ 983,450

64,557

r62,5rl
17,696

r,228,204

492,280
36,673

r0,246,42r
94,767

963,760
(5,800,734)

6,033,167

7,261,371

6tl
96,912
3,455

104,763

63,405
269 r46

13,819

r,057,446
1,07I,265

l,34o,4ll

4,g7o,g5g
1,050,002

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2OI7

OPERATING REVENUES
Water and sewer sales

Penalties
Connection fees

Hay sales

Other
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Employee benefits
Professional and technical services
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

OPERATING LOSS

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Interest income
Interest expense

Total non-operating revenue (expense)

LOSS BEFORE TRANSFERS

Transfers in
Transfers out

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, JULY T,2016

NET POSITION, JUNE 3O,2OI7

$ 963,083
26,554
36,168

8,550
t3 948

1,049,303

323,261
93,142
18,065

305,250
59,612

253,290
1,052,620

(4,317)

590
(36,944)
(36,354)

(40,671)

42,688
(40,000)

(37,983)

5,958,943

$ 5,920,960

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND - V/ATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash payrnents to employees for services
Cash payments for goods and services

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOV/S FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers to general fund

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets

Transfers from SPLOST funds
Interest paid
Principal paid on long-term debt

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in certificates of deposit
Interest received

Net cash provided by investing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY I,20T6

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 3O,2OT7

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating loss

Adjustments:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid items
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable

Compensated absences payable

Interfund payable

Customer deposits
Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$ 1,048,510
(412,996)
(436,006)

199,508

(40,000)

(73,99r)
42,699

(36,944)
(110,312)
(r78,619)

(2e2)
590
298

(18,813)

1,002,263

$ 983,450

$ (4,317)

253,290

(4,92t)
3,107

(13,085)

3,407
(43,101)

5 128

$ 199,508



CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2017

The City of Metter (the "City") was incorporated in 1903. The City operates under a Council/Maîager form of
government and provides the following services: public safety, streets, sanitation, recreation, and general
administrative services. In addition, the City operates a water and sewer system.

NOTE 1 _ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The govemment-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary govemment and its component units.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovemmental revenues, and other
nonexchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges to extemal customers for support. Likewise, fhe primary governmenl is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable.

The most significant of the City's accounting policies are described below.

L-A.. Reporting Entity

The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are
included to ensure that the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the City
consists of all funds, departments, boards, and agencies that are not legally separate from the City.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the City is financially accountable. The City is
financially accountable for an organization if the City appoints a voting majority of the organization's
governing board and (1) the City is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or
provided by the organizations; or (2) the City is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization's
resources; the City is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or
provide financial support to, the organization; or the City is obligated for the debt of the organization.
Component units also may include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the City in that the City
approves the budget, levies their taxes or issues their debt.

The component unit column included on the government-wide financial statements identifies the financial data
of the City's discretely presented component unit. It is reported separately to emphasize that it is legally
separate from the City.

The City's only component unit is the Downtown Development Authority of Metter (the Authority). The
primary purpose of the Authority is to promote industry and trade in the downtown area. The City provides its
primary funding. There are no separate financial statements prepared for the Authority and there were no
financial transactions for the Authority for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Candler County Industrial Development Authority, Candler County Recreation Commission, Metter-Candler
County Airport Authority, and Metter Housing Authority are related organizations in that the City appoints all
or some of the members of the authorities/commission but does not have financial responsibility for them.

-25-



CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1-8. Basis of Presentation

The City's basic financial statements consist of govemment-wide statements, including a staternent of net
position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of
financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements include the statement of
net position and the statement of activities. These statements report financial information for the City as a
whole. Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish goverrrmental activities, generally
supported by taxes, grants, and the City's general revenues, from business-type activities, generally financed in
whole or part with service charges to external customers.

The statement of net position presents the financial position of the governmental and business-type activities of
the City.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
function of the City's govenìmental activities and for each identifiable activity of the business-type activities of
the City. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a function and therefore clearly
identifiable to that particular function. The City does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement
of activities.

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly
connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include portions
of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and program revenues associated with a

distinct functional activity. Program revenues include: (1) charges for services which report fees and other
charges to users of the City's services; (2) operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating
activities including restricted investment income; and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund the
acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues are subject to extemally imposed
restrictions to these program uses. For identifying to which function program revenue pertains, the determining
factor for charges þr services is which function generates the revenue. For grants and contríbutions, the
determining factor is to which function the revenues are restricted.

Other revenue sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues of the
City. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each
governmental function and each identifiable business activity is self-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the City.

Fund Financial Statements - During the year, the City segregates transactions related to certain City functions
or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Fund
financial statements are designed to present financial information of the City at this more detailed level. Fund
financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds.

Major individual governmental funds are reported in separate columns.
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Fund Accounting - The City uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is a fiscal and
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The City uses two categories of funds: governmental
and proprietary.

Governmental Funds - Government funds are those through which most govemmental functions
typically are financed. Govemmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses, and balances of
current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according
to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Fund liabilities are assigned to the fund from
which they will be liquidated. The City reports the difference between govemmental fund assets and
liabilities as fund balance. The following are the City's major governmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund accounts for all financial resources except those required to be
accounted for in another fund. The general fund's fund balance is available to the City for any
pu{pose provided it is expended or transferred according to the general laws of the State of Georgia.

Regional Drug Task Force Fund - This special revenue fund accounts for the activity of the
Southeastem Regional Drug Task Force based in Metter.

2005 SPLOST and 2011 SPLOST Fund - These capital projects funds accounts for the special
purpose local option sales tax received from Candler County to be used for various capital
improvements.

T-SPLOST Fund - This fund accounts for the regional transportation special purpose local option
sales tax proceeds received for transportation purposes within the City

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income,
changes in net position, financial position and cash flows. The proprietary funds are classified as

enterprise funds and internal service funds. The City's only enterprise fund is the water and sewer
system fund which accounts for the water and sewer provided to the City's constituents. The water and
sewer system fund is reported as a major fund in the financial statements.

1.-C. Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements - The govemment-wide financial statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the City
are included on the statement of net position. The statement of activities reports revenues and expenses,
including depreciation.

Fund Financial Statements - All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally
are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
reports the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing
uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental
activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements
therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the
goveriment-wide statements and the govemmental fund statements.
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Like the goverrrment-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus on both financial reporting levels. All assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of these funds are included on the statements of net position. The statements of changes in fund net
position present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in total net position. The statement of
cash flows provides information about how the City finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary
activities.

1-D. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the
financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
At the fund reporting level, the governmental funds use the modified accrual basis in accounting. Proprietary
funds use the accrual basis of accounting at both reporting levels. Differences in the accrual and the modified
accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred outflows/inflows of
resources, and in the presentation ofexpenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange Transactions - Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party
gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On
the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded when the exchange takes place and in the fiscal year in which
the resources are measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be collected within
the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current fiscal year. For the City, the phrase "available for exchange transactions" means expected to be
received within 60 days of year-end.

Revenues - Non-exchange Transactions - Non-exchange transactions in which the City receives value
without directly giving equal value in retum, include sales taxes, property taxes, grants and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from sales taxes is recognized in the period in which the taxable sale takes place.
Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from
grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to
be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the City must provide local
resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided
to the City on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions
also must be available (i.e., collected within 60 days) before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be susceptible to accrual
property taxes, sales taxes, interest and federal and state gtants.

Expenses/Expenditures - On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are
incurred. On the modified accrual basis, expenditures generally are recognized in the accounting period in
which the related fund liability is incurred and due, if measurable.
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1-8. Assetso Liabilities and Net Position

Casho Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits and short-term investments with a maturity date

within three months of the date acquired by the City.

Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices.

Georgia law authorizes the City to invest in the following type of obligations:

o Obligations of the State of Georgia or of any other states
o Obligations of the United States Government
. Obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the United States Government or United States Government

agency
o Obligations of any corporation of the United States Govemment
o Prime bankers' acceptances
o The State of Georgia local government investment pool (i.e., Georgia Fund I)
o Repurchaseagreements
o Obligations of the other political subdivisions of the State of Georgia

Receivables

All trade and property tax receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectibles, where applicable.

Interfund Balances

On the fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are

classified as "due from/to other funds". These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and business-type
activities columns on the statement of net position, except for any net residual amounts due between
govenrmental and business-type activities, which are reclassified and presented as intemal balances on this
statement. These amounts are ultimately eliminated from the total column on the statement of net position.

Consumable Inventories

On the government-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at the lower of cost or market on a first-
in, first-out basis and are expensed when used (i.e., the consumption method).
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Prepaid Items

Payrnents made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2017, are recorded as prepaid
items using the consumption method by recording an asset for the prepaid amount and reflecting the
expenditure/expense in the year in which services are consumed. At the fund reporting level, an equal amount
of fund balance is nonspendable, as this amount is not available for general appropriation.

Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary fund.
These assets generally result from expenditures in governmental funds. The City reports these assets in the
governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net position but does not report these
assets in the govemmental fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the proprietary fund are reported
in the business-type activities column of the govemment-wide statement of net position and in the proprietary
fund's statement of net position.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements
during the year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date received. The City
maintains a capitalization threshold of five thousand dollars. The City's infrastructure consists of street,
bridges, and water and sewer lines. Infrastructure acquired after 1971 has been capitalized by the City.
Improvements to capital assets are capitalized. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are expensed. Interest incurred during construction of
capital assets utilized by the enterprise fund is capitalized.

All reported capital assets are depreciated except for land, right-oÊways, and construction in progress.

Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Useful lives for
infrastructure were estimated based on the City's historical records of necessary improvements and
replacement. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Description
Governmental Activities

Estimated Lives
Business-Type Activities

Estimated Lives
30 years

5-10 years

5-40 years

At the inception of capital leases at the governmental fund reporting level, expenditures and an "other financing
source" of an equal amount are reported at the net present value of future minimum lease payments. The
amounts capitalized are being amortized by the straight-line method over the estimated life of the asset.

Amofüzation of these assets is included in depreciation expense.

Buildings and improvements

Land improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Water and sewer system

15-50 years

15-20 years

5-15 years

15-40 years
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Compensated Absences

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees' rights to receive
compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the employer will compensate

the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means.

The total compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. The
proprietary fund reports the total compensated liability at the fund reporting level. Governmental funds report
the compensated absence liability at the fund reporting level only "when due".

Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial
statements.

In general, govemmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner
and in fulI from current financial resources are reported as obligations of these funds. However, compensated

absences that will be paid from govemmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements

only to the extent that they are "due for payment" during the current year. Capital leases are recognized as a
liability in the goveÍìmental fund financial statements when due.

Bond Premiums, Discounts and Issuance Costs

On the government-wide statement of net position and the proprietary fund type statement of net position, bond
premiums and discounts are netted against bonds payable. On the government-wide and proprietary fund type
statement of activities, bond premiums and discounts are arnortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method and bond issuance costs are expensed in the current period.

At government fund reporting level, bond premiums and discounts are reported as other financing sources and

uses, separately from the face amount of the bonds issued. Bond issuance costs are reported as expenditures.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City does not have any deferred outflows of resources as of
June 30, 2017.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inJlows of resourc¿s, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The City has only one type of item, which arises only under a modified
accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable
revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The govemmental funds report unavailable
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

revenues from property taxes. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period
that the amount becomes available.

Fund Equify

Fund equity at the govemmental fund financial reporting level is classified as "fund balance". Fund equity for
all other reporting is classified as "net position".

Fund Balance - Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the current assets and current
liabilities. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that comprise a

hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific putposes
for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable -Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amounts cannot be spent because they
are either (a) not in spendable form (i.e., items that are not expected to be converted to cash) or (b) legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restrícted - Fund balances are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

Commítted - Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be used only for specific purposes

pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council through the adoption of a resolution.
Only the City Council may modify or rescind the commitment.

Assígned - Fund balances are reported as assigned when amounts are constrained by the City Council's
intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City Council has by
resolution authorized the City Manager to assign fund balance.

[Inøssígned - Fund balances are reported as unassigned as the residual amount when the balances do not
meet any of the above criterion. The City reports positive unassigned fund balance only in the general fund.
Negative unassigned fund balances may be reported in all funds.

Flow Assumptions - When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available for use for
expenditures incurred, it is the City's policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted amounts as they
are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the City's policy to use fund balance in the
following order:

o Committed
o Assigned
o Unassigned

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital
assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any
borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as
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CITY OF METTERO GEORGIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the
City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other govemments.
All other net position is reported as unrestricted.

The City applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net position are available.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revsnues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary
fund. For the City, these revenues are charges for water and sewer services. Operating expenses are necessary
costs incurred to provide the water and sewer services and include administrative expenses and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

Contributions of Capital

Contributions of capital in proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside contributions of capital
assets, tap-in fees to the extent they exceed the cost of the connection to the system, or from grants or outside
contributions of resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction.

Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses
in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repa¡rment
are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in
governmental funds and after the nonoperating revenues/expenses section in proprietary funds. Repayment
from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not
presented on the financial statements (i.e., they are netted).

Transfers between govemmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statement of activities are

reported as general revenues. Transfers between funds reported in the govemmental activities column are

eliminated. Transfers between funds reported in the business type activities column are eliminated. Transfers
between govemmental and business-type activities are eliminated from the total column.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 12,2018, the date the financial statements were
available for issue. No subsequent events requiring disclosure in the financial statements were noted.
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 _ STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Budgetary Information

The City adopts an annual operating budget for the general fund and each special revenue fund. A project
budget is adopted for each capital projects fund. The budget resolution reflects the total of each department's
appropriation in each fund.

All budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP.

The legal level of control (the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) for each
adopted annual operating budget generally is the department level within each individual fund. The City
Manager may approve budget transfers within departments. Any change in total to a fund or departmental
appropriation within a fund requires approval of the City Council. During the year, the City Council approved
budget revisions.

All unexpended annual appropriations lapse at year-end.

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2017, expenditures exceeded appropriations for the following departments within
the general fund:

Governing body
Financial administration
Police
Animal control
Sanitation

Maintenance and shop

Community center

Libraries
Airport

$ 22,008

27,790
40,361

87

9,267
1,958

3,194
13

t2s

These over expenditures were funded primarily by under expenditures in other departments

Expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following special revenue funds and these overexpenditures were
funded by additional revenues over amounts budgeted andlor available fund balance.

Regional drug task force
Hotel/Motel tax

Overexpenditures

$ 25,522

8,919
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CITY OF METTERO GEORGIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 - CASH DEPOSITS WITH BANKS
Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be
returned to it. The government does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.

At June 30,2017, the carrying amount of the City's deposits (checking and certificates of deposit) was

$4,198,837 and the bank balance was 54,322,502. Of the bank balance, $1,000,000 was covered by federal
depository insurance, and $3,322,502 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institution's trust department or agent in the City's name.

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES
Receivables at June 30, 2017, consisted primarily of taxes, interest, accounts (billings for user charges), and
intergovernmental receivables arising fr om grants.

Receivables and payables are recorded on the City's financial statements to the extent that the amounts are

determined to be material and substantiated not only by supporting documentation, but also by a reasonable,

systematic method of determining their existence, completeness, valuation, and in the case of receivables,
collectability. The allowances for uncollectibles netted against receivables at June 30, 2017 consisted of
$21,132 and$41,264 for the general fund and water and sewer system fund, respectively.

NOTE5_PROPERTYTAXES
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as ofJanuary 1. Property taxes are billed on or about
October 20th of each year and are payable within sixty days. The County bills and collects property taxes for
the City. Property tax revenues at the fund reporting level are recognized when levied to the extent that they
result in current receivables (i.e., collectible in 60 days). For the year ended June 30, 2017, property taxes were
levied on November 29, 2016, and were due on March I0, 2017 .

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30,2017 is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund T-SPLOST Fund
Vy'ater and Sewer System Fund

$ 47,409
63,405

$ 110,814

Interfund balances at June 30,2017 represent reimbursable expenditures and revenue reclassified to the General
Fund. The City expects to repay all interfund balances within one year.

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2017 consisted of $39,900 and $2,788 in transfers to the water
and sewer system fund from the 2005 SPLOST fund and 2011 SPLOST fund, respectively, for capital projects
and $40,000 in transfers to the general fund from the water and sewer system fund for payroll cost allocation.
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTET_CAPITALASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows:

Balance

7/ll20t6 Additions Deductions
Balance

613012017

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Other capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements
Land improvements

Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Land improvements

Machinery and equipment
Infrastrucure

Total accumulated depreciation

$ 604,003
45,881

$ 604,003
16,195$ 2,000 $ 31,686

649,884 2,000 31,686 620,198

10,000

28,297,585 602,395 10,000 28,889,980

Total capital assets 28,947,469 604,395 41,686 29,510,178

I,803,456
576,923

2,316,356
1) 70,332

11,220,036 747,031 11.967 ,067

Govemmental activities capital assets, net $ 17,727,433 I (142,636) $ 41,686 $ 17,543,1l l

Governmental activities depreciation expense:

13,822,200
668,710

2,649,401
tt,158,274

30,000
12r,556
4s0,839

13,822,200
688,710

2,769,957
11,609,113

1,467,976

565,845
2,137,442

7,049,773

335,480
I 1,078

178,914
227,559

General government

Public safety

Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation

s 297,875

134,023

290,4r1
2,142

22,590

Total governmental activities depreciation expense S 747,03I
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in capital assets for the City's enterprise fund

Balance

7lt/2016 Additions Deductrons

Balance
6130120t7

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Other capital assets being depreciated

Water and sewer system
Buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Total capital assets

Accumulated depreciation:
Vy'ater and sewer system

Buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

s 492,280
44,947

$ 492,280
36,673$ 498 S 8,772

537,227 498 8,'772 528,953

10,164,156
94,767

82,265 10,246,421
94,767

963 760 963 760
11,222,683 82,265 11,304,948

ll,7 59,910 82,763 8,772 11,833,901

4,597,647
76,949

872,848

229,200
2,099

2t,99t

4,826,847
79,048

894,839
5,547,444 253,290

Business-type activities capital
assets, net s 6,212,466 S (170,527)

NOTE 8 _ FUND BALANCES _ GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
As of June 30,2017, fund balances are composed of the following:

$ 8,772

5 800 734

$ 6,033,167

General Fund

Regional
Drug Task

Force

2005

SPLOST
Fund

20tt
SPLOST

Fund

T-SPLOST
Fund

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 71,980 s 2,266 s 74,246

$ 524,174 $ 1,054,107

$ 84,481

1,578,281
529,526

84,481
100,000

529,526

100,000

Nonspendable:

Prepaid insurance

Restricted:
Capital projects
Drug task force
Road projects
Animal shelter

Total restricted
Assigned:

Animal shelter
Fire department

Total assigned

Unassigned
Total fund balances

100,000 529,526 524,174 1,054,107 84,481 2,292,288

33,942

11 571

45,513
944,052

33,942

ll,57l
45,513

944,052
$ s24,174 $ l$ 1,161,545 _ï:1U22_
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE9_LONG-TERMDEBT
Notes Payable - The City has entered into notes payable with the Georgia Environmental Finance Authority
(GEFA) with balances at June 30,2077, as follows:

Business-Type

Activities

GEFA (99-L26WJ), payable in quarterly installments of
519,472 including interest at 4.75o/o through June 1,2021 s 282,15t

GEFA (2013-L20WQ), payable in monthly installments of
$4,985 including interest at2.40% through August 1,2035 880,058

_8 l,l62ry

Annual debt service requirements to amortize all notes payable outstanding at June 30,2017 are as follows

Business Activities
Year Principal Interest Total
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

2023-2027

2028-2032
2033-2036

Total

104,763

108,886

1 13,186

rl7,60r
43,062

23r,50r
260,985

r82,225

32,941 $

28,817

24,518
20,171

16,755

67,584
38, I 00

1,194

r37,704
r37,703
137,704

137,772

59,817

299,085

299,085
189,419

$ $

g 1,162,209 $ 236,080 $ 1,398,289
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Capital Leases - Georgia Municipal Association (GMA) - The City has entered into lease agreements with
GMA to purchase vehicles costing $138,669 for governmental activities. Annual depreciation expense on these

capital assets was $26,133, and accumulated depreciation was $73,468 at June 30,2017.

The capital leases require annual payments including interest as follows:

Governmental Activities
Year Principal Interest Total

2018
20r9
2020
2021

2022
Total

$ 28,347
21,629
9,599

9,926
10,265

$ 2,712
r,717
1,016

688

3s0

$ 31,059
23,346
10,615

10,614

10,615

S 79,766 $ 6,483 s 86.249

NOTE 10 _ CHANGES IN LONG.TERM DEBT

Outstanding
7/|2016 Additions Reductions

Outstanding
613012017

Amounts Due
in One YearGovernmental Activities

Capital leases

USDA loan

Compensated absenses

Total Governmental Activities

56,003 $ 48,050

9,851

59,029 25,645

s 79,766 s 28,347

84,674 16,935

$ s 24,287

9,851

$ 124,883 s 73,695 $ 34,138 S 164,440 s 45,282

s 1,272,581

13 867 $ 3.407

s 1,286,448 $ 3,407 $ 110,372 $ 108,218

The capital lease obligations for governmental funds will be paid from the General Fund. The compensated

absences liability for govemmental funds will be paid from the General Fund and for business-type activities
from the Water and Sewer System Fund. Principal and interest payments related to notes payable for the City's
'Water 

and Sewer System are financed from income derived from the operation of the Water and Sewer System.

Business-Type Activities
Notes payable

Compensated absences

Total Business-Type Activities

s 110,372 s 1,162,209

77,274

$ 1 ,1 79,483

$ 104,763

3,455

-39-



CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN
The City of Metter Retirement Plan is a defined contribution plan which was adopted by resolution of the City
Council and was effective January l, 1994 to provide retirement benefit to plan members. . The plan is
administered by the City of Metter. The 201 6 calendar year covered payroll was $ 1 ,555,264 and the total 2016
calendar year payroll was $I,635,29I. The plan is open to all full{ime employees with more than one year of
service.

Employees are l00o/o vested in the City contribution after five years of service. The contribution for the year
ended June 30, 2017 to the City funded plan was $80,419 which is 5.2o/o of the 2016 calendar year covered
payroll. Employees do not contribute to this plan and the City does not have a required contribution.
Contributions are established by the City Council on an annual basis.

NOTE 12 _ CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As of June 30, 2017, there was no pending litigation that would have a material effect on the financial
statements.

NOTE 13 _ RISK MANAGEMENT
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors

and omissions; workers' compensation claims; and natural disasters. The City carries commercial insurance to
cover these risks. The City joined the Georgia Interlocal Risk Management Agency (GIRMA). Insurance
coverage and deductible options for property, casualty and crime under the policy are selected by the City's
management based on the anticipated needs. The City is required to pay all premiums, applicable deductibles
and assessments billed by GIRMA, as well as following loss reduction and prevention procedures established
by GIRMA. GIRMA's responsibility includes paying claims, and representing the City in defense and

settlement of claims. GIRMA's basis for establishing the liabilities for unpaid claims is "IBNR" established by
an actuary. The City has not compiled a record of claims paid up to the applicable deductible for the prior year
or the current fiscal year. The City is unaware of any claims for which the City is liable (up to the applicable
deductible) which were outstanding and unpaid at June 30,2017 . No provisions have been made in the financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2017 for any estimate of potential unpaid claims.

The City has elected to be a member of the Georgia Municipal Association 'Workers' Compensation SelÊ
Insurance Fund (the Fund). As a participant in the Fund, the City has no legal obligation to pay its own workers'
compensation claims. The City is required to make an annual contribution to the Fund in an amount that is
determined on the basis of actuarial projections of losses. With payment of the City's annual contribution, the
City has effectively transferred the risk and responsibility for pa¡rment of its workers' compensation claims.
However, the enabling statute creating the Fund permits the Fund to levy an assessment upon its members to
make up any deficiency the Fund may have in surplus or reserves. No amount has been recorded in the financial
statements for this contingency as management believes the likelihood for assessment is remote.
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 14 _ JOINT VENTURE
Under Georgia law, the City, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the middle Georgia area, is a

member of the Heart of Georgia Altamaha Regional Commission (RC) and is required to pay annual dues

thereto. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the City paid $4,130 in such dues. Membership in an RC is
required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA) Section 50-8-33, which provides for the
organizational structure of the RC in Georgia. The RC Board membership includes representatives from each

county and municipality of the area. OCGA 50-8-39 provides that the member govenlments are liable for any
debts or obligations of an RC. Separate financial statements may be obtained from:

Heart of Georgia Altamaha Regional Commission
5405 Oak Street

Eastman, Georgia 31023

NOTE 15 - HOTEL/MOTEL LODGING TAX
The City levies aTYolodging tax. A summary of the transactions for the year ended June 30, 2017 follows:

Lodging tax receipts

Expenditures
s 72,919

(72,919)

$

All expenditures were for promotion of tourism as required by OCGA 48-13-51.
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30,
20t7

JUNE 30,
20r6

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Receivables:

Taxes
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Other
Interfund

Prepaid insurance

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue

Other

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - property taxes

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND
FUND BALANCE

$ 1,406,740 $ 1,433,843

134,752
16,953

16,609

$ 148,091

26,316

168,314 174,407

76"881 71,266

$$ 624,9r5
233,969

ll5,32l
38,512

196,405
14,824

110,814
71,980

693,980
254,934

100,459
37,475
81,517

8,165
153,915
103,398

$

7r,980
100,000

45,513
944 052

103,398
100,000
67,605

917,t67
1.,161,545 1,188,170

$ 1,406,740 $ 1,433,843
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CITY OF METTBR, GEORGIA
GENERAL FIIND

COMPARATTVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITIIRES AND
CHANGES IN FTIND BALANCE

YEAR ENDED
JTINE 30,

20t7
JLINE 30,

2016
REVENUES

Taxes:

Property
Motor vehicle
Sales

Franchise

lnsurance premium

Alcoholic beverage

Other

Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Intergovemmental
Fines and forfeitures
Interest

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General govemment
Municipal court
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Housing and development

Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITTIRES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Sale of capital assets

Proceeds from capital leases

Transfers in
Total other financing sources

NET CHANGE IN FI.IND BALANCE

FLIND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

21,748

88,750 2l 748

(26,625) 6,704

1,188,170 1,18L,466

$$ 576,722
116,494

655,839
302,925

257,146
100,051

40,544

87,740

390,388

628,810

82,398
2,073

89 324

J 330,454

627,959

9,967

1,500,871

931,789
58,579

r28,1,23

r53,796

34,1,38

2,207

568,4I7
141,592
617,842
286,384
237,396

98,568
39,657

85,462

390,901

280,008

133,451
1,674

192,614

3,073,966

597,957

r0,295
1,289,879

790,020
51,600

127,680
155,500

62,471

3,608

3,445,829 3,089,010

(115,375) (15,044)

700

48,050

40,000

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

-43
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
REGIONAL DRUG TASK FORCE SPECIAL REVENUE FTIND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Intergovernmental receivable

Prepaid insurance

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Unearned revenue
Other

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted

Total fund balance

ASSETS

JUNE 30,

2017

JUNE 30,

2016

$$ 621,35r
101,013

2,266

618,rr7
112,457

4,255

s 724,630 8 734,829

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

$$ 47,880

9,127

135,831

79,392

7,599
48,r78

r92,838

2,266

s29 s26

13 169

4,255
595,405

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCE

531 792 599,660

s 724,630 $ 734,829
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
REGIONAL DRUG TASK FORCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,

20t7
JUNE 30,

20r6
REVENUES

Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Public safety

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

SPECIAL ITEM
Assumption of Southeastern Regional

Drug Task Force by City

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

748
4rr,024 362,922

478 892 422,332

(67,868) (59,410)

(67,868) 599,660

599,660

$ 360,896
48,380

s 347,778
15,144

1

659,010

$ 531,792 $ 599,660
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
2OO5 SPLOST CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

JUNE 30,
2017

JUNE 30,
2016

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ s24,174 $ S63,792

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE - Restricted

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FTIND
BALANCE

524,174 $ 563,792

$ 524,174 $ 563 792
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
2OO5 SPLOST CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,

2017

JUNE 30,
2016

REVENUES
Interest

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:

Public safety
Public works

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

(39,618) (293,231)

563,792 857 023

$ sz4,l74 $ 563,792

$ 282 $ 349

209,1r2
65,034

274,146

(39,900)

(273,797)

(r9,434)

282
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
2011 SPLOST CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Intergovemmental receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

ASSETS

JUNE 30,
2017

$ 1,011,506
42,721

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

$ 1,054,227 $ 883,524

JUNE 30,
20r6

$ 757,872
125,652

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

FUND BALANCE - Restricted

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FLIND
BALANCE

t20 l2l,l43

$ 1,054,107 $ 762,38r

$ 1,054,227 $ 883,524
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
2011 SPLOST CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,

2017

JUNE 30,

20t6
REVENUES

lntergovernmental
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:

Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

291,726 (329,023)

762,381 1,091,404

$ 1,054,107 $ 762,381

$ $535,317

409

504,697

505

535,786 505,202

150,166

91,106

237,293
387,254

241,272 624,547

294,514 (t 19,34s)

(2.788\ (209,678)
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
T-SPLOST CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

JUNE 30,
2017

JUNE 30,
2016

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Intergovernmental receivable

TOTAL ASSETS $ t31,890 $ 91,450

$ $r28,306
3,584

87,934
3,516

LIABILITIES
Due to other funds

FUND BALANCE - Restricted

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCE

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

$ 47,409 $ 47,409

84,481 44,041

$ 13 1,890 $ 91,450
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
T-SPLOST CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:

Public works

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,

2017

JUNE 30,
20t6

$ 42,399
4t

$ 64,054

42,440 64,054

2,000 109,051

40,440 (44,997)

44,041 89,038

$ 84,481 $ 44,041
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND

COMPARATTVE BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

JUNE 30,
20t7

JUNE 30,
2016

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

$ 9

7

6,60
6,23 $ 6,706

$ 12,846 $ 6,706

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

FUND BALANCE - Restricted

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCE

$ 12,846 $ 6,706

$ 12,846 $ 6,706
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FI.]ND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - HOTEL/MOTEL TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JLINE 30 2017

Original and
Final Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative
20r6

Actual)
REVENUES

Hotel./Motel tax

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Housing and development - Tourism

NET CHANGE IN FI.]ND BALANCE

FI-IND BALANCE, JULY I,2016

FI-IND BALANCE, JI-INE 3O,2OI7

$ 64,000 s 72,919 $ 8,919 $ 69,905

64,000 72.9t9 (8,919) 69,905

$ $$

$
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
V/ATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30,

2017

June 30,

20t6
ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Certificates of deposit

Accounts receivable

Prepaid insurance

Total Current Assets

Capital Assets

Land

Construction in progress

Water and sewer system

Buildings
Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Total Capital Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilites
Accounts payable

Customer deposits

Compensated absences

Notes payable

Interfund payable

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilites
Compensated absences (net of current portion)
Notes payable (net of current portion)

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted
Total Net Position

1,229,204 I,244,911

$$ 983,450

64,557

r62,5ll
17,686

1,002,263

64,265
157,590

20,793

492,280
36,673

r0,246,421
94,767

963,760
(5,800,734)

492,280

44,947

10,164,156

94,767

963,760
(5,547,444)

6,033,161 6,2r2,466

7,26r,37r 7,457,377

6lr
96,912
3,455

104,763

63,405

13,696

9r,784
2,773

110,346
106 s06

325 10s

11,094

1,162,235

269 r46

13,819

1 057 446

1,071,265 1,173,329

1,340,41r 1,499,434

4,970,958 4,939,985

1,019,0581 050 002

-54-
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,

2017
JUNE 30,

2016
OPERATING REVENUES

'Water 
and sewer sales

Penalties
Connection fees
Hay sales

Other
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Employee benefits
Professional and technical services
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

OPERATING LOSS

NON-OPERATING REVENUE ( EXPENSE)
Interest income
Gain on disposal of capital assets

Interest expense
Total non-operating revenue (expense)

LOSS BEFORE TRANSFERS

Transfers in
Transfers out

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

1,052,620 1,119,086

$ 963,083
26,554
36,168

8,550
13,948

s 970,362
26,792
36,115
7,600

19,1 10

1,059,9791,048,303

323,26r
93,r42
18,065

305,250
59,612

253,290

341,188
103,000

19,010
336,881
62,618

256,389

(4,317) (59,107)

s90

(36,944)
(36,354)

(40,671)

42,688
40,000

769
11,000

05

(89,390)

229,1r2

(37,983) 139,722

5,958,943 5,819,221

$ 5,920,960 $ 5,958,943
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CITY OF METTER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS PAID WITH SPECIAL

PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX PROCEEDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017

2OO5 SPLOST

Original
Estimated

Cost

Current
Estimated

Cost

Expenditures
Estimated
Percentage

ofPrior
Years

Current
Year Total

Water system improvements

Sewer system improvements

Street and drainage improvements

Public building projects

Acquisition of new equipment

Totals

20I1 SPLOST

$ 950,000 $

87s,000

630,000

800,000

375,000

950,000 $

875,000

630,000

800,000

375,000

$ 39,900 S 221,s27

- 815,766

- 619,337

- 573,353

- 325,000

181,627

815,766

619,337

573,353

32s,000

Completion
23%

93%

98%

72%

87%

$ 3,630,000 $ 3,ó30,000 $ 2,515,083 _q__igfgq_ $ 2,554,983 70%

Original
Estimated

Cost

Current
Estimated

Cost-$ lJoopoo

600,000

200,000

300,000

540,000

I 03,5 10

Expenditures
Estimated
Percentage

of
Completion

27%

90%

22%

82%

72%

90%

$ 1,360,000

600,000

200,000

300,000

540,000

100,000

$ 3ó 1 ,79s

286,476

43,450

246,103

390,943

I 03,5 l0

Current
Year

$ 2,788 $

251,272

Total
364,583

537,748

43,450

246,103

390,943

93,5 10

Prior
Years

Water and sewer system improvements

Street improvements

Drainage improvements

Construction/improvements of public facilities

Acquisition of vehicles and equipment

Esthetic enhancements (City entrance signs)

Totals $ 3,100,000 $ 3,103,s10 1,432,277

( r 0,000)

yltpþg_ $l 7 54%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE \ryITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Council
City of Metter, Georgia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government

Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial

statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented

component unit, each major fund, and the remaining fund information of City of Metter,

Georgia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 and the related notes to the financial

statements, which collectively comprise City of Metter, Georgia's basic financial statements, and

have issued our report thereon dated January 12,2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Metter, Georgia's intemal

control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances for thb purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial

statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of
Metter's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City
of Metter, Georgia's internal control.

A defi.ciency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
ntanagement or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functicrns, to

prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable

possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,

or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe thana material weakness, yet

important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consicleration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph

of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be

material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did

not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesbes.

However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Metter, Georgia's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.

However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no

instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government

Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other

purpose.

V;i";.+, W.*/raâe,
Statesboro, Georgia
January 12,2018

-58-


